
Memorandum 

To:   New Haven Board of Education Finance and Operations Committee 
From:   Denise Duclos  
Date:   07/09/20  
Re:   FY20 School Readiness Agreement  with Farnam Neighborhood House 
 
Executive Summary/ Statement: (Please provide 1-2 sentences describing the Service – do not leave blank): 
Approval is requested for one Agreement by and between New Haven Board of Education and Farnam 
Neighborhood House.  The Contractor will serve a total of 44 children for a total of $392,656. The Contractor 
will provide an early care and education preschool program for New Haven children ages 3-4 years.  The 
Contractor will receive the following rate for service:  Full Day/Full Year: $8,924/child 
 
Amount of Agreement and the Daily, Hourly or per Session Cost:  
 

Contractors Spaces approved for 
this Contractor  

Totals 

Farnam Neighborhood House 44 $392,6560 
   
  Contract total    $392,656 
 

Funding Source & Account #:  CT Office of Early Childhood, 2523-5385 56697 
 
Key Questions: (Please have someone ready to discuss the details of each question during the Finance & 
Operations meeting or this proposal might not be advanced for consideration by the full Board of Education): 
 
1. Please describe how this service is strategically aligned to the District Continuous Improvement Plan?  

Providing a quality preschool experience offers children a chance to practice and learn the skills and 
information needed to be successful lifelong learners.  Preschool programs offer children experiences that 
support gains in all developmental domains-social, emotional, cognitive, physical and language areas, all 
areas critical to a positive kindergarten experience.   

 
2. What specific need will this contractor address? 

The State Office of Early Childhood (OEC) goals for the School Readiness Grant are: 
• Provide open access for children to quality programs that promote the health and safety of children 

and prepare them for formal schooling;  
• Provide opportunities for parents to choose among affordable high-quality programs;  
• Encourage coordination and cooperation among programs and prevent the duplication of services;  
• Strengthen the family through encouragement of parental involvement in a child’s development and 

education and to enhance of a family’s abilities to meet the needs of their children, including 
children with disabilities and,   

• Improve the coordination of services of child care Contractors. 
 

3. How was the contractor selected? Quotes? RFP? Sealed Bid or Sole Source? Please describe the selection 
process including other sources considered and the rationale for selecting this method of selection. 
This is the 2nd year of the State biannual budget.  Due to Covid 19, the Office of Early Childhood did not 
require an RFP process. Providers funded in FY20 were allowed to continue services into FY21.  Normally 
contractors are selected through an annual RFP process as required by the CT Office of Early Childhood.  
The RFP’s are reviewed and approved by the New Haven Early Childhood Council. 

 



4. If this is a continuation service, when was the last time the alternatives were sought? 
Based on guidance from the CT Office of Early Childhood, the Council has contacted all licensed program 
in New Haven and has added those interested in receiving School Readiness fund to a wait list.  

 
5. What specific skill set does this contractor bring to the project? 

School Readiness preschool staff must meet the educational requirements established by the CT Office of 
Early Childhood. For FY21, the requirements are for all lead teachers to have a minimum of a Child 
Development Associate and 12 credits in early childhood education.  In FY25, all lead teachers must have 
either an Associates Degree or a Bachelor’s Degree in Early Childhood.   
 

6. How does this contractor fit into the project as a whole? (If the contractor is an individual, please attach a 
copy of their resume): 
All School Readiness contractors must provide a developmentally appropriate program and meet the 
requirements as set forth in the Scope of Services, Exhibit A. 
This provider also meets the Council’s priority to offer a full day, full year program for children whose 
parents/guardians are working.  The program is proud of its multicultural community and its ability to serve 
the needs of New Haven’s Spanish speaking families. 

 
7. Is this a new or continuation service?   

This is a continuation service. 
 

8. If this is a continuation service has cost increased?  
a) If yes, by how much?  
Costs have not increased.  Costs are set by the CT Office of Early Childhood. 
b) What would an alternative contractor cost?  
All contractors receive the same rates. 
c) Is this a service existing staff could provide? Why or why not?  

New Haven Public Schools also receives School Readiness funds and provides a preschool program in 5 
schools. 
 

9. Evidence of Effectiveness: How will the contractor’s performance be monitored and evaluated? 
 

Contractors must meet the School Readiness requirements as set by the OEC.  These include: 
• accreditation by the National Association for the Education of Young Children or Head Start,  
• use of curriculum standards and child assessments aligned with the OEC; 
•  teacher education requirements as described above;  
• Compliances with the 11 Quality Components as outlined in CT General Statutes Sections 10-16o 

to 10-16u– The 11 components include: collaboration, parent involvement, health, nutrition, pre-
literacy practices, family literacy, admission policies, transition to kindergarten, professional 
development, a sliding fee scale and an annual program evaluation    

 
10.  If a continuation service, attach a copy of the previous evaluations or archival data demonstrating 

effectiveness. (If archival data includes lengthy reports, syllabi, training materials, etc., please have a copy 
available for review) 
A compilation report of all School Readiness Contractors is available for the Committee 

 
11. If the service is a professional development program, can the training be provided internally, by district 

staff?  
N/A 
 a) If not, why not?  
b) How will the output of this Agreement contribute to building internal capabilities? 

 



12. Why do you believe this Agreement is fiscally sound?  
All School Readiness Contractors submit monthly fiscal and program reports to ensure funds are utilized as 
required.  Compliance is monitored by NHPS School Readiness fiscal and program personnel.   

 
13. What are the implications of not approving this Agreement? 

The New Haven School Readiness Council has, on rare occasions not approved a provider for initial 
funding, or, when all efforts to help a current provider improve services have not shown significant results, 
funding was not continued.  The Council prefers to use its resources, such as education consultants and staff 
to help School Readiness programs implement a quality improvement plan.   
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